



# GCRF C MPASS NEWSLETTER

Comprehensive Capacity-Building in the Eastern Neighbourhood and Central Asia: research integration, impact governance & sustainable communities.















#### **Contents**

Welcome Note		
Past Events		
Global Challenges Research Conference, University of Kent, 2-6 July 2018		
Steering Group meeting for the Consortium, 4-5 July 2018		
Launch of 'Study My Girl' campaign, July 2018		
Baku Summer Energy School (BSES), 8 July 2018		
UPTAKE Early Career Researchers (ECR) Training School at Uppsala University, 26-31 August 2018		
6th International Education Forum of Shanghai University (SHU), 19 June-3 July 2018		
ADA University 3rd EU Summer Camp, Baku, 9 July-3 August 2018		
Regional Energy Security Symposium, Baku, 16-20 July 2018		
President of Italy at ADA University, Baku, 18 July 2018		
President of Tajikistan at ADA University Baku, 11 August 2018		
ABRN, Borderlands Spaces: Ruins, Revival(s) and Resources, American University of Central Asia, Bishkek, Kyrgyz Republic, 13-15 August 2018		
UACES 48th Annual Conference, Bath, United Kingdom, 2-5 September 2018		
EISA conference in Prague, 12-15 September 2018		
Workshop on 'Producing high impact academic papers', ADA University, Baku, 24-28 September 2018		
COMPASS Launch Event in ADA University, Baku, 5 October 2018		
Marx in a High Technology Era: Globalisation Capital and Class, Cambridge, 26 October 2018		
Belarus in the Contemporary World, Minsk, 26 October 2018		
Technology Production and Internationa Relations Symposium, Cambridge, 27 October 2018		
Workshop on 'Resilience', Rome, 9 November 2018		
International Scientific Conference: Formation of the Belarusian statehood in the context of geopolitical shifts of the 20th century, Minsk, 29-30 November		
Brussels Executive Training Trip, 20-26 January 2019		

	London Forum, 27-29 January 20197
	ESCAS 2019 Exeter: The Globality of Central Asia, UK, 27-29 June 2019
n	other news
	Memorandum of Understanding signed between Uzbekistan and Cambridge, Tashkent, 2 July 2018
	China Executive Leadership Program (CELP), July, Cambridge
	BSU Digital Library rankings
	BSU-KENT success at continuing their ERASMUS+ mobility cooperation, 2018-19
	Book Launch: 'Making the Kyrgyz', Bishkek, 13 August 2018
	Tajikistan's Independence Day Celebrations, 9 September 2018 8
	Independence Day Celebrations at the Uzbek Embassy in London, 12 September 2018
	Publications
Planned Visits	
	GCRF COMPASS UK team members to visit Partner countries, October 2018 8
50	ocial Media8
	Culture and Islam in Late Soviet Central Asia", George Washington University, 15th of February8
	Professor Peter Nolan talks about the

## Welcome Note

By Elena Korosteleva



Dear Friends and Project Partners,

I hope you had a restful summer break, and welcome to our 3rd newsletter of the COMPASS project, overviewing all our major events, developments, and personal achievements of the members of the project consortium.

Four months on, after the BIG BANG launch in Minsk in May, I can confirm that we have not been leisurely in our plans and actions for COMPASS capacity-building. In June, we presented two panels at the annual international TARTU conference and expect the release of its conference proceedings shortly. In July, some of us got involved in the Global Challenges Conference at Kent for networking and strategizing, the result of which is an underway project 'Connect.Ideas' for JM Network competition led by Tartu and many Chairs/Centres bids for growth and development. In August, our Early Career Researchers (ERCs) attended an UPTAKE Training School in Uppsala, also enjoying a visit to the Swedish Parliament and the amazing WASA museum; while September saw some conference activities, welcoming new Global Challenges PhD students, and major report writing, including by the members of the Advisory Board. Thank you to all for your fantastic effort, and contributions to the project!

I am also pleased to report that we are beginning to see 'the light' at the end of the tunnel – that is, where we want to be on the completion of this unique project, with our ambitions and KPIs. We are now seriously engaging in business of profiling our identified signature areas, including 'Governance and Resilience' @Kent; 'Central Asia @Cambridge; 'Gender & Human Security' @ADA University; 'Minsk Dialogue & Eurasian Union' @BSU; 'Silk Road Identity & Cultural Diplomacy' @TNU, and 'CA Identity & Regional Security' @UWED. These developments, of course, will be underpinned by the whole array of activities including landmark conferences and forums across the region and the UK, to ensure that we the COMPASS Consortium - are firmly placed on the scholarly map for comparative regional studies and major new concepts for the wider Euro-Asian region.

Having set up Global Challenges Doctoral Centre @Kent, we are now working on introducing our joint biannual *ERC Training Schools* and a wider PG network on a rotating basis, to ensure that our talented young people will have a forum for ideas and sharing best practice. The 1st ERC Training School will be hosted jointly by Kent & Cambridge, moving into the region in the coming years.

We are also gearing up for the *Executive Study Trip* to Brussels (20-26 January) and the *London Forum*, in Europe House (27-29 January 2019) to shape up our academic and policy connections! Their agendas are available on sharepoint for further information.

There is still a lot to be done, including visiting partners and meeting new people. However, what matters the most, is our commitment and joint vision – it is always easier to think BIG together, when you know that there is a brilliant and united team around you, to share an ambitious vision of the future!

Yours faithfully,



Professor Elena A. Korosteleva, Principal Investigator, University of Kent

## Past Events

#### Global Challenges Research Conference, University of Kent, 2-6 July 2018

The University of Kent organised the 'Global Challenges Research Conference', 2-6 July 2018, to foster global partnerships and new research projects to help address the challenges of the developing world. conference gathered stakeholders from all levels - government officials, and funders, NGO, practitioners, scholars of multiple disciplines. Baroness Suttie, from the House of Lords, and a COMPASS AB member, gave the key-note speech underlining the importance of the funding initiative.

The COMPASS project prominently featured at the conference, with Professor Korosteleva's presentation and Q&A sessions involving National Team Leaders from ADA University. BSU, TNU, and UWED (via videolink). The partners also used this occasion to further discuss their KPIs and Action Plans for the next academic year, and develop learning & research synergies for a Jean Monnet Network application. These meetings were also attended by Dr Stefano Braghiroli and Dr Anne Beitane (Tartu University), Professor Thomas Kruessmann GCRF COMPASS, University of Kent https://research.kent.ac.uk/gcrf-compass/

(GOPA), Miriam Lexmann (IRI Brussels, and COMPASS AB member), and Dr Sue Griffith (GPG, and COMPASS AB member).

https://research.kent.ac.uk/researchservices/gcrf2018/



## Steering Group meeting for the Consortium, 4-5 July 2018

The Consortium also organized its 2nd *Steering Group* meeting (including via video-conference with UWED) to discuss strategic KPIs for partners and the shared calendar of activities.



## Launch of 'Study My Girl' campaign, July 2018

As part of the Global Challenges COMPASS project, ADA University Center of Excellence in EU Studies (CEEUS) has launched the Study My Girl (#OxuQızım) initiative in July 2018 by presenting a powerful video on Facebook. In this video four women living in a women's shelter in Baku are

sharing details of their life stories, what challenges didn't allow them to get a proper education and their thoughts on the importance of education in the life of every young woman. The main purpose is to support girls and women to get the education they deserve, share powerful stories about physical, cultural and social barriers they face in accessing education and create a platform for public discussion and debate on women empowerment. The initiative will be continued by implementing community-based projects and training that help to empower girls and address barriers to girls' education. The video can be viewed on CEEUS Facebook page in Azerbaijani with subtitles in English.

## Baku Summer Energy School (BSES), 8 July 2018

The BSES is an annual two-week certificate program of the Caspian Center for Energy and Environment (CCEE) of ADA University held in July in partnership with the State Oil Company of the Azerbaijan Republic (SOCAR) and British Petroleum in Azerbaijan. It brings together world-renowned scholars, academicians and policy makers to examine and gain a better understanding of global energy and environment issues and their practical application.

http://www.ada.edu.az/en-US/Pages/Baku-Summer-Energy-School-2018.aspx

UPTAKE Early Career Researchers (ECR) Training School at Uppsala University, 26-31 August 2018



Between 26th and 31st August several members of the COMPASS project participated in the 4th UPTAKE Training School titled 'Straight talk about Russia'. The Training School took

place at Uppsala University in Sweden and was organised through the H2020 Twinning project UPTAKE.

The theme of the Training School was to take stock of developments in and relations to Russia since the end of the Cold War, and the subsequent collapse of the USSR. The basic premise was that in the nearly three decades since, Russia has been in more or less constant focus. On reflection of radical internal transformations, outside attitudes have swung from unbounded optimism, to doom and gloom, to re-energized beliefs in an economic boom and to perceptions, following the crisis in Ukraine, of Russia as a threat.



Anar Valiyev (ADA University), Pavel Boltochko (BSU) and Eske van Gils (Kent) presented their work at the school; and PI Elena Korosteleva also participated in the programme.



# Talks and Events

## 6th International Education Forum of Shanghai University (SHU), 19 June-3 July 2018

Prof Khasanov, UWED, attended a conference on Exploration of the Internationalization of Higher Education GCRF COMPASS, University of Kent https://research.kent.ac.uk/gcrf-compass/

in the Context of the "Belt and Road Initiative" at the 6th International Education Forum, SHU. He gave a talk on 'Basics & Priorities of Higher Education in Uzbekistan'.

Prof Khasanov also gave a series of 10 seminars to the SHU students about the Theory of International Relations and the Specifics of Central Asia's Development.



#### ADA University 3rd EU Summer Camp, Baku, 9 July-3 August 2018



On July 9-August 3, 2018 ADA University organized the 3rd EU Summer Camp. The Summer Camp is a one-month program which gives school students of 9-15 ages a chance to spend their summer in an interesting and fruitful way by experiencing a variety of activities, developing their worldview, capacities and logical thinking. During the month, more than 150 school children participated at the Camp. Through the activities, participants acquired basic knowledge about the European Union institutions and history, and drew similarities between Azerbaijani and European cultures. The Camp was divided into four thematic weeks: "Azerbaijan 100 - When East meets West", "ICT Genius", "Best Banker and Junior all Employability", "Environment around Us". The Camp aims to develop children's intellectual capacities and develop interest and understanding towards European Union and its values creating a unique education platform for Azerbaijani school children.

#### Regional Energy Security Symposium, Baku, 16-20 July 2018

On July 16-20, ADA University's Center of Excellence in EU Studies in partnership with NATO Energy Center of Excellence and Naval Postgraduate School co-organized a 'Regional Energy Security Symposium'. The Symposium brought together government officials, representatives of high reputable oil companies, highranking officials from Azerbaijan and academicians from USA to discuss energy security and threats to Caspian and Caucasus regions. During the week attendees, the majority of which were government agencies ministries, participated in lectures and seminars covering numerous topics such as Geopolitics of Energy, Critical Energy Infrastructure Protection, Cyber Security and others. The special guests of the Symposium included Mr. Parviz Shahbazov, Minister of Energy of the Republic of Azerbaijan, Mr. Vitaly Baylarbayov, Vice president of State Oil Company (SOCAR), Dr. Brenda Shaffer from Georgetown University and other highly reputable international experts in related fields.



## President of Italy at ADA University, Baku, 18 July 2018

ADA University was honoured to host the public speech of H.E. Sergio Mattarella, President of Italy on July 18. This was the first visit of the Italian President to Azerbaijan. Public speech and other meetings during the visit covered the Southern Gas Corridor (SGC), Trans Adriatic Pipeline (TAP), contribution to stability and peace in the Caspian region for Europe and included an Azerbaijan-Italy business forum.



#### President of Tajikistan at ADA University, Baku, 11 August 2018



On August 11, 2018 ADA University was honored to host the President of Tajikistan, H.E. Imomali Rahmon, to give a public speech. H.E. Hafiz Pashayev, rector of ADA University, remarked that, "Azerbaijan Tajikistan have established a reliable political dialogue, strengthened business relations and built cooperation in number of spheres. Azerbaijani-Tajik relations also contribute to regional cooperation. We can note satisfaction cooperation in the international arena, where the positions of our countries on important issues coincide".

In turn, H.E. President Emomali Rahmon mentioned comprehensive development of stable and long-term bilateral relations with the member countries of the Commonwealth of Independent States (CIS), and especially with Azerbaijan. He also highlighted the importance of Tajikistan and Azerbaijan's close cooperate in all spheres and the coordination of joint effort in the international arena.



ABRN, Borderlands Spaces: Ruins, Revival(s) and Resources, American University of Central Asia, Bishkek, Kyrgyz Republic, 13-15 August 2018



Dr Saxena was invited to co-organise a panel in the ABRN meeting. The panel was called, 'The Spatial Dynamics of Infrastructure Investments in Urban Centers of Central Asia: Revival. Decline, Centers and Peripheries'. The panel was hosted by Urban Knowledge Network Asia—a large network of urban Asia scholars, bringing together over 20 partners—and two of its institutional partners: the International Institute of Asian Studies (IIAS) in Leiden, the Netherlands, and the Faculty of Architecture of the University of Hong Kong (UHK). It was convened by Prof Willem Vogelsang (International Institute for Asian Studies, the Netherlands) and Juan Du (UHK). The chairs were Paul Rabé (International Institute for Asian Studies. Netherlands) and the discussants were Manu Sobti (School of Architecture, The Queensland University), and Max Woodworth (Ohio State University). Dr Saxena (Cambridge), Dr Morozova (University of Regensburg), Xiaoxuan Lu (UHK) and Flora Roberts (University of Leiden/ University of Tübingen) spoke in the panel.

This panel investigated the many implications of large-scale investments in Central Asia for the region's urban centers. It explored the incidences and multiple meanings of center versus periphery, revival versus stasis, neglect and loss, and the encounters of "slow versus fast, old versus new, and flexibility versus rigidity" that are associated with these changes. Participants analysed Central Asian cities and towns in comparative (Asian) perspective and in particular Central Asian urban centers in their own right.

## UACES 48th Annual Conference, Bath, United Kingdom, 2-5 September 2018

Elena Korosteleva (Kent), Miriam Lexmann (IRI & COMPASS AB Tatiana Romanova member). (St Petersburg University & COMPASS AB member) and Eske van Gils (Kent) participated in a roundtable at the UACES conference in Bath on 4th September. The round table was called 'Democracy promotion vs capacitybuilding as a new EU strategy in the neighbourhood: How to make use of resilience?'. Along with Prof Richard Youngs (Warwick/Carnegie Europe) the panelists reflected on the EU's policy towards the eastern neighbourhood and considered different angles for the project's conceptual framework. The roundtable was also used as an opportunity to introduce the project to a wider network of scholars, and to invite colleagues to the joint COMPASS-IAI workshop which will be held in November.



## EISA conference in Prague, 12-15 September 2018

Members of the COMPASS Kent team, along with AB member Prof Trine Flockhart and Dr Tobias Bunde (Hertie School of Governance) participated in the EISA Conference in Prague. The roundtable session was 'Interrogating complexity of a changing global order: Building resilience and cooperative orders in an increasingly multi-order world'. Panelists reflected on the changing world order; issues of governance, identity and resilience; as well as the (re-)positioning of Uzbekistan and Azerbaijan in this international setting. The session was followed by an engaging discussion with the audience on issues of regional security and the changing world order.



# Workshop on 'Producing high impact academic papers', ADA University, Baku, 24-28 September 2018

A week long research workshop was conducted on "Producing high impact academic papers" with the participation of ADA faculty from four Schools and researchers from other Azerbaijani Universities between 24-28 September. The workshop was organized by the Center of Excellence in EU Studies, ADA University. During the week participants gained skills on how to write high impact scientific papers to be presented in conferences and to be published in peer-reviewed, highranking international journals. The training was conducted by international expert, Dr Bernard Pochet, University of Liege (Belgium), Director of publication of the international peer reviewed journal BASE (Biotechnol. Agron. Soc. Environ.).



# Save the Date: Major Project Events

# COMPASS Launch Event in ADA University, Baku, 5 October 2018

On 5th October the Launch event of GCRF COMPASS project will take

GCRF COMPASS, University of Kent https://research.kent.ac.uk/gcrf-compass/

place in Baku, Azerbaijan. The event aims to bring together the main stakeholders from academia and think tanks, government and public sector, NGOs and international organizations, to present the project background, objectives and goals, introduce the team members and agree on how to effectively cooperate with the stakeholders. The event will be attended by Prof Elena Korosteleva (PI) and members of Kent and Cambridge teams.

#### Marx in a High Technology Era: Globalisation Capital and Class, Cambridge, 26 October 2018

As part of the COMPASS project, Cambridge Central Asia Forum in collaboration with the Centre for Development Studies and the of Department Sociology have organised a conference on 'Marx in a high technology Era'. The papers will address Marxist Heritage, Marxism and Contemporary Issues, Marx in the Digital Era and Marx in the 21<sup>st</sup> century. It will be attended by academics and students from the University of St Petersburg and Moscow University along with members of UK universities.

COMPASS with its focus on the wider region and global networks will benefit from these discussions in wider Eurasia. Russia remains are important for Central Asia and Belarus not only because of the membership to EAEU but also a much longer shared past. Discussions will include how the Eurasian and Central Asian worldview is evolving in the context of this history

#### Belarus in the Contemporary World, Minsk, 26 October 2018

The Faculty of International Relations of the Belarusian State University, International public association for research and development, Information and educational programs Development, Public Association Center for Foreign Policy and Security Studies, Public Association for European Studies and COMPASS have organised the 17th Scientific Conference International "Belarus in the Modern World" and postgraduates. invites teachers. specialists researchers and international relations, the world economy, international and European

law, international tourism, customs, diplomatic and consular services.

#### Technology Production and International Relations Symposium, Cambridge, 27 October 2018

As part of COMPASS events, Cambridge is organizing a one day symposium of experts and practitioners to reflect on the capacity of the diplomatic corp, policy Institutions and IR academics, Business Schools, and economists to understand revolutionary changes taking place in science, technology and production regimes in the current decade and how they shape international relations paradigms, not merely related to digitalisation, AI, facebook etc.

## Workshop on 'Resilience', Rome, 9 November 2018

COMPASS is organising a one-day workshop on 9 November 2018 in Rome with H2020 UPTAKE project and the International Affairs Institute (IAI), with Dr N. Tocci (COMPASS AB member), to interrogate the new concept of 'resilience' introduced by the EU's Global Security Strategy (2016). 'Resilience', if understood as allowing local communities to grow their capacities and critical infrastructures bottom-up, drawing on their cultural available resources and aspirational futures, should make development, with international more assistance, effective sustainable. The concept however is fairly new to the field of politics and security, and may run into a trouble of multiple interpretations and centralised practices. The workshop thus sets to unpack and debate the notion of resilience in theory, and EU policies and practice, with a particular focus on the eastern neighbourhood and Central Asian region.

## International Scientific Conference: Formation of the Belarusian statehood in the context of geopolitical shifts of the 20th century, Minsk, 29-30 November

The Faculty of History of the Belarusian State University invites you to take part in the International Scientific Conference "Formation of the Belarusian Statehood in the Conditions

of Geopolitical Changes of the 20th Century." Topics under consideration will be: State-forming processes in Belarus in the context of geopolitical transformations in Central and Eastern Europe in 1914-1921; National-state construction in the BSSR in the 1920s; Belarusian statehood in the face of international challenges and threats of the late 1930s - the first half of the 1940s; The power and society of the BSSR in the post-war period; Belarus in the geopolitical shifts of the second half of the 1940s-1980s; Transformation of social and political life in the second half of the 1980s - early 1990s; Proclamation of independence of the Republic of Belarus; Formation of the presidential political system in the Republic of Belarus; and Geopolitical potential of the Republic of Belarus in context of integration globalization processes of our time.

## Brussels Executive Training Trip, 20-26 January 2019

COMPASS is organizing its core event - the Brussel Executive Training School which aims to bring top-level delegations from all our Consortium partners (ADA, BSU, TNU, and UWED) to Brussels for a 5-day training and networking. Our partners will meet top EU officials and practitioners to learn more about EU decision-making, negotiations, and lobbying, trade, scientific cooperation and strategic priorities with the Eastern neighbourhood and Central Asia.

## London Forum, 27-29 January 2019

COMPASS consortium is preparing for its landmark event – the London forum on 27-29 January 2019 – to explore the cooperative potential for UK capacitybuilding engagements with the wider region of eastern neighbourhood and Central Asia. The participants will include major policy stakeholders, research councils and practitioners (Westminster, DFID, FCO, WFD, IRI, BOND, British Council, GCRF UKRI, British Academy), academics and students of development and politics, to learn about the UK's aid strategy and the challenges of transformation in the region, as well as ways to work together institutional, educational, community-building, economic and security resilience to make governance more effective and sustainable.

# ESCAS 2019 Exeter: The Globality of Central Asia, UK, 27-29 June 2019

The European Society for Central Asian Society (ESCAS) began in 1985 with a small conference at Utrecht University and has continued since with biennial conferences in a dozen European cities and more recently, in Central Asia too. Its focus is on building scholarly links and support between Europe and Central Asia. The theme for the 16th conference is 'The Globality of Central Asia'. We invite proposals for papers, panels, round-tables and sessions in non-traditional formats covering all aspects of Central Asian Studies across the humanities and social sciences. The Call for Papers is now open.

Please get in touch with Dr Kudaibergenova on dk406@cam.ac.uk if you would like to discuss and submit proposals. This is a wonderful opportunity to present our work to a wider audience.

All submissions have to be in by Wednesday 31 October 2018 (midnight GMT) online. The presentations will be in a variety of formats, and may be in Russian and/or English.

http://www.escas.org/next-conference/

## <u>In other</u> news

## Memorandum of Understanding signed between Uzbekistan and Cambridge, Tashkent, 2 July 2018

Following Dr Saxena's visit to our partners at UWED in Uzbekistan, the Cambridge Central Asia Forum signed a Memorandum of Understanding with the Centre of Islamic Civilization in Uzbekistan, Imam Bukhari International Scientific Research Centre, Centre for Research of Uzbekistan's Cultural Wealth Located Overseas on 2 July 2018. These links are a move towards further cooperation, exchanges and dialogues with research institutions in Uzbekistan.

## China Executive Leadership Program (CELP), July, Cambridge

Dr Saxena gave a talk and participated in the CELP Program, Cambridge July 2018. The program attracts the highest echelons of Chinese leaders and executives who are exposed to UK and Europes's academic and business forerunners. This is a great opportunity to interact, exchange and discuss new ideas, technologies, business models.

CELP was established in 2005 and is organised by Asia Research Centre, CBS, in co-operation with A.P. Moller – Maersk and Judge Business School, Cambridge University. The programme takes place over the course of three weeks in July in Cambridge and Copenhagen where four days are spent in Copenhagen.

The global reach of this network is of interest to COMPASS and brings the importance of the wider region of Eurasia into focus.

#### BSU Digital Library rankings

Digital Library of the Belarusian State University was ranked among top 30 repositories in the world! It is the 3rd best among university repositories according to "The Ranking Web of World repositories" by the Cybermetrics Lab.

<u>The press-release from BSU (in</u> Russian):

https://www.bsu.by/main.aspx?guid=23 5071&detail=921793

Ranking:

http://repositories.webometrics.info/en/t ransparent

# BSU-KENT success at continuing their ERASMUS+ mobility cooperation, 2018-19

BSU and Kent partnership continues to thrive through the success of the 2nd round of ERASMUS+ mobility project to allow exchange of students and staff, as well as sharing practice and organizing joint activities.

## Book Launch: 'Making the Kyrgyz', Bishkek, 13 August 2018



Dr Saxena with Her Excellency Dr Iskakova (Ambassador of the Kyrgyz Republic, UK) launched the book, 'Making the Kyrgyz' at the ABRN, Borderlands Spaces: Ruins, Revival(s) and Resources at the American University of Central Asia in the Kyrgyz Republic. The multi-author volume comes out of a seminar to celebrate 25 years of Kyrgyz independence in Cambridge. The papers reflect the current challenges for a post-Soviet Kyrgyz Republic. These issues and discussions are not different from the rest of the region and shed light on the historicity, traditions and shared past of Central Asia and wider Eurasia.

The social and cultural dimension of COMPASS' aims and objectives can look to such publications which showcase local concerns, aspirations and needs. https://asianborderlands.net/program



## Tajikistan's Independence Day Celebrations, 9 September 2018

Prof Munira Shahidi, Tajik National University, was invited to the festivities organized by the administration of the President of the Republic of Tajikistan. The ceremony was held at the grandiose, Kohi Navruz, in Dushanbe. The celebration saw many prominent members of Tajik society come together and involved celebratory speeches followed by a concert.

Independence Day Celebrations at the Uzbek Embassy in London, 12 September 2018



Dr Saxena attended Uzbekistan's Independence Day celebrations at the Embassy of Uzbekistan in London with His Excellency Shaykov, and Dr Akiner (President of the British Uzbek Society). Dr Saxena extended COMPASS' congratulations on this momentous occasion. The event was marked with a festivities and a reception.

#### **Publications**

COMPASS Joint report, <u>ECFA's</u>
<u>Report on the EU's new Strategy for</u>
<u>Central Asia</u>, September 2018
http://www.eurasiancouncilforeignaffair
s.eu/

Valiyev, A., 'Azerbaijan's Policy Toward EU Integration: Unrecognised Strategic Partner in Geopolitics and Security: A new Strategy for the South Caucasus, Edited by Kornely Kakachia, Stefan Meister, Benjamin Fricke, (The Konrad-Adenauer-Stiftung, February 2018)

Kudaibergenova, D, T. 'Contemporary Public Art and Nation: Contesting "Tradition" in Postsocialist Cultures and Societies', in Central Asian Affairs, 1(6), 2018, pp. 1-27; 'Misunderstanding Abai and the Legacy of the Canon: "Neponyatnii" and "Neponyatii" Abai in Contemporary Kazakhstan', in Journal of Eurasian Studies, 9(1), pp. 20-29. 2018, 'Compartmentalized Ideology: Presidential Addresses and Legitimation in Kazakhstan' in Isaacs, R. and Frigerio, A. Theorizing Central Asian Politics. The State, Ideology and Palgrave Macmillan Power. International Political Theory Series (Palgrave, 2018); Kudaibergenova, D.T. and B. Shin, 'Authors Authoritarianism in Central Asia: Failed Agency and **Nationalising** Authoritarianism' in Uzbekistan and Kazakhstan, Asian Studies Review 42(2), pp. 304-422, June 2018

Kalra, P. Qirghiz Qaghanate (820-940) in 'Making the Kyrgyz', (Cambridge Scientific Publishers. Forthcoming October 2018)

## <u>Planned</u> Visits

## GCRF COMPASS UK team members to visit Partner countries, October 2018

Universities of Kent and Cambridge of the UK will visit partner HEIs in Azerbaijan (4-5 October), UWED and TNU in October 2018.

The agenda for the visits is to discuss partners' strategic KPIs and shared and individual activities under the auspices of the COMPASS project.

## Social Media

## Culture and Islam in Late Soviet Central Asia", George Washington University, 15th of February

Dr Kudaibergenova gave an interview after the "Culture and Islam in Late Soviet Central Asia" workshop held in George Washington University on 15th of February. http://centralasiaprogram.org/archives/1 2235

#### Professor Peter Nolan talks about the One Belt One Road, 9 September 2018

Advisory Board member, Prof Nolan gave a talk on 'China's One Belt One Road Project' on 9 September 2018. Access link here.

## Thank you for your attention!

Please send your questions and news to Prajakti Kalra (pk315@cam.ac.uk).

Follow us on Twitter and Facebook @GCRF\_COMPASS